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1. Name of Property

historic name Lymansville Company Mill

other names/site number  Lymansville Mill

2. Location

street & number 184 Woonasquatucket Avenue not for publication
city or town  North Providence vicinity

state Rhode Island code R county Providence code 007 zip code 02911

3. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended,

I hereby certify that this X nomination request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards
for registering properties in the National Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional
requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.

In my opinion, the property X meets does not meet the National Register Criteria. | recommend that this property
be considered significant at the following level(s) of significance:

national . X statewide local

RI Historical Preservation & Heritage Commission
state or Federal agency/bureau or Tribal Government

In my opinion, the property meets does not meet the National Register criteria.
Signature of commenting official Date
Title State or Federal agency/bureau or Tribal Government

4. National Park Service Certification
| hereby ~rtify that this property Is:

entered In the National Register . determined eligible for the National Register
determined not eligible for the National Register . removed from the National Register
other (explain:) . A-4-

Signature of the Keeper Date of Action
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Lymansville Company Mill
Name of Property

5. Classification

Ownership of Property Category of Property
(Check as many boxes as apply.) (Check only one box.)
private building(s)
public - Local district
public - State site
public - Federal structure
object

Name of related multiple property listing
(Enter "N/A" if property is not part of a multiple property listing)

N/A

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions
(Enter categories from instructions.)

INDUSTRY/manufacturing facility

7. Description

Architectural Classification
(Enter categories from instructions.)

NO STYLE

(Expires 5/31/2012)

Providence County, RI
County and State

Number of Resources within Property
(Do not Include previously listed resources in the count.)

Contributing Noncontributing

7 2 buildings
district
site

2 structure
object

9 2 Total

Number of contributing resources previously
listed in the National Register

Current Functions

(Enter categories from instructions.)

INDUSTRY/manufacturing facility
VACANT

Materials
(Enter categories from instructions.)

foundation: STONE, BRICK, CONCRETE
BRICK, GLASS, SYNTHETICS, WOOD,
wails: ASBESTOS SHINGLE

roof: ~ ASPHALT, SYNTHETICS

other:
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Summary Paragraph

The Lymansville Company Mill isacomplex of connected worsted manufacturing and finishing buildings sted
on aten-acrelot onabend in the Woonasguatucket River in the southwest comer of North Providence, Rhode
Idand. The complex comprises seven major buildings, predominantly brick, rangingin height from one to three
doriesal built by the Lymansville Company. Four buildings congtructed between 1834 and 1837 srve asthe
core around which are arrayed anumber of additions and new buildings erected through the mid-twentieth
century. The complex islocated on the eest bank of the river on the Site of a cotton factory established by Judge
Danid Lyman in 1807.' The Lymansville Company Mill complex includes dements of the water power sysem
that was in operation until ca 1942. The concrete and masonry Lymansville Dam still impounds a subgtantid
pond ontheriver. Portions of the heedrace and tailrace next to the mill complex are intact, though dry, while the
other sections have been filled. Theriver bounds the mill property on the south and west; Woonasguatucket
Avenue which isthe main dreet of the adjoining village of Lymansville isthe magjor boundary on the north and
eedt. Theorigina core of Lymansville was multi-family housing built by the Lyman Company in the 19*'
century. A number of these housesremain, dong with many late 19" and early "™ century privately-built
houses on dreetsnorth and east of the mill complex including Sack Strest and Lyman Avenue."

Narrative Description

The Lymansville Company Mill was desgned and built under the supervisonof A. Albert Sack (1843-1925) for
the manufacture and finishing of worgted yam and cloth. The earliest constmction in 1884-5 comprised: Mill
No. 1, athree-gtory brick building for the production of worsted yam; abrick Boiler and Engine House
(Building No. 2) located dong the headrace and atached to Mill No. 1, and asingle-story frame Weave House
(Building No. 3). A two-gtory brick Finishing Building (Mill No. 4), sited perpendicular to Mill No. 1, was
buih in 1887 and expanded soon after. The company adso more than doubled the sze of Mill No. 1in this 1887
expandon. By 1901 the company added a small, two-story wing off Mill No. 1 ussd for company offices and a
sngle-gory, frame Dye House (demolished in 1951), and doubled the Sze of the Weave House. Between 1921
and 1937 the company added another north extenson to Mill No. 1. Severd mid-20"-century building
campagns added asngle-gory Factory Building (No. 7) atached to the rear wall of Mill No. 1 and a concrete
block Dye House built in 1951. The Lymansville Company plant was closed in 1957. Snce that time, the plant
hes been subdivided for variouslight industrial uses such asjewelry manufacture.

Themill islargely surrounded by asphdt paving, except for the grassy areaon the Steof thetailracein front of
Mill No4 and agrassy border with mature evergreen treesthat mns aong Woonasgquatucket Avenue. Scmb
vegetation covers the property where it abutstheriver.

Seven contributing buildingsand two contributing structures are inventoried below. Buildings are numbered
according to date of construction.

' The dtingof Danid Lyman'sorigind 1807 cotton mill wes uch that the waterpower receweay extended ina
outhwestaly direction from agatehouse on the Woonesguatudket River, entering a whedhouse parpendiculaly a the
reer of the man mill and flowing through an gpen tailraceto rgjoin the river about 30 feet downgream. Although most
of theorigind mill complex wesdaemadlished for the condruction of the presant plant, the genard dignmeant of the man
building of the Lymen plant and its phydcd reaionship to the receway and river wes replicated in the 18845
condruction. Se the 1882 Hopkins FAat Mg of Providencefor a plan of the Lymean Cotton Manufacturing Compary
plant thet wes demdlished in 1834.

" Two company-built houses that aurvive ard61-163 and 173 Woonesouetudket Avenue
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Contributing Buildings

Mill No. 1
Spinning and Carding Building (1834 & seqg., contributing)
184 Woonasquatucket Avenue

A three-gory, rectangular brick pier and soandrd building with a shallow-pitched geble roof and granite
foundation. Asbuilt in 1884, this building'sorigina dimensons were 82' x 77' overdl. In 1887 the building
was extended on the north end with a 100' x 112" addition that more than doubled the Szeto overall dimendons
of 192' X 100" (s== Additional Information, Figures 1 and 2). Between 1921 and ca 1937 it was extended at full
height on the north elevation by 50' using in-kind materias, rendering the current 22 x 9 bay configuration and
100 x 250" overdl dimensons. The roof overhang is supported by shgped rafter ends The framing is sandard
dow-buming mill constmction with timber columns and floor beams supporting double-layer plankflooringin
the 1884-1887 sectionsof the building. C-section ded dements have been sstered to origina beamsin much of

th
the building. In the 20 -century additions, the framing congsts of sed /-beamsand round columns.

Windows have segmentd arch openings, sillsare concrete on the first and second floors, and wood on the third.
The windows were originally equipped with paired double-hung wood saeh sgparated by awooden mullion.
First floor windows had a 9/18 pane configuration; second floor windows were 9/15; third floor windows were
9/12. After 1957 the original windowswere removed and, on the first twofl oors,the wood sillswere replaced
with concrete and duminum transoms were ingtalled in place of the wooden transoms. The windows are now
fitted (typically) with multi-light, & uminum framewindows. Many upper-story windows have been blocked
down with wood framing and plywood sheething; vinyl windowswith two horizontal lights have been installed
in the reduced opening.

As originaly built in 1834 a brick, four-story tower, atached to Mill No. 1 neer its junction with the Weave
House, was completely exposed, with the main entranceto the plant on its eest elevation (sse Additional
Information, Figure 1). When Mill No. 4 was built three years|ater, the two lowerfl oorsof the tower were
absorbed into the new building (see Additional Information, Figure 6). Thistower hes a20' by 30" plan. The
comice is frame with smple brick corbeling below. Origina paired 912 double-hung windows on thefront
elevation have been removed and replaced with plywood-sheathed wood framing fitted with modem vinyl
windows. Upper tower windows are narrow 4-light, wooden frame; these gppear to be origina. Below these
upper windows on the north tower eevation is inscribed: Lymansville Co. 1885. The original, shalow
pyramidd roof was removed by the mid-20™ century; the tower roof is now flat. In additionto the surviving
darcase, pargoet railing and landings, the fourth floor of the tower housed a 3,700-gdlon water tank (no longer
extant).

A seoond brick stair-tower was added to the et elevation of Mill No.l as part of the northem extension built
between 1921 and ca 1937. A four-story smcture, two bayswide and one deep, with a shalow-pitched roof
with projecting rafter ends, it hes low segmenta-arch windows and contains aged darcase A third tower, a
flat-roofed plain brick freight elevator tower occupies one bay of the east eevation to the wes of the office
wing.

Thisbuilding sarved the following historical ftinctions: first floor, wool combing and dressing; sscond floor,

wool spinning and carding; third floor, yam spooling. Company offices were located in this building from 1834
to ca 1900. The raceway for the plant's hydraulic sysem passed through the basement of the building. A whed
pit in the basament housad two turbines. A massive, brick-arched opening on the eest wall returned water to the
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taillrace. Whenfirst built in 1884, what isnow  the southernmost part of this basament housed some wet
finishing and drying operations (later moved to Mill No. 4).

With the cessation of waterpower generation, the heedrace was filled in and between 1942 and 1956, the
Lymansville Company constmcted a 3-story, 24" x 48" infill addition above the former heedrace Thisbrick and
concrete smcture has a shalow-pitched shed roof, and interior framing of sted /-beamsand cylindrical iron
columns supporting aheavy plank floor. There isa continuous band of ted industrid sesh windows dong the
wes dlevation onthetwo upper floors. The ground floor provides a concrete loading dock.

Building No. 2
Boiler/Engine House (1884, ca. 1890 et seq., contributing)

Thisbrick smcture dongsde the former heedrace on the west elevation of Mill No. 1 incorporates a complex
smctura history that includes original constmction and three campaigns of enlargement. As originally built, the
Boiler/Engine House was a degp, predominantly single-story ssmcture, 64' x 40', with ashalow-pitched geble
roof It wasdivided into three rooms. a26' x 40' room containing two boilers, a21' x 38' room housng a100
HP compound condensing eam engine; and a 19" x 38' machine shop. A second story room over the Engine
Room housad apicker. A square-section chimney abutted the building's north wall.

It islikely that Sack anticipated an expansion of the deam capacity of the mill even as the Boiler/Engine House
wes being built. By 1887 he incressed the number of boilersto four, an incresse in deam capacity necesstated
by an overdl expanson of the mill that included more than doubling the sze of Mill No. 1 and the constmction
of the Finishing Building (Mill. No. 4). Despite these improvements, the footprint of the original Boiler/Engine
House was not changed a thetime.

In 1906 Sack madea 25' x 40" wesdterly expansion of the boiler houseto accommodate a fifth boiler to provide
the additiona capacity necesstated by an expanson of Mill No. 4. At that time he dso added a chamber for fire
pumps. Between 1905 and 1921 this building was expanded to the south 22" by the full length of the building,
roofed by way of an extenson of the south dope of the origina gable. In the 200" century asmall, brick, sngle-
gory Blower Room was added to thisextension a its juncfion with the origina Engine House. By 1921 a46' X
20' cod housewas added to the west elevation. The current shed-roofed, concrete block addition of relatively
recent constmction in thislocation replaced thisoriginal stmcture.

Window openings in the exposad part of the original building are segmentd arched, in keeping with the rest of
the early constmction. These openings have been filled with duminum inserts. In the south extenson there are
three rectangular window openings with concrete sills: two are plywood filled; athird hes aged frame
indugtrial sssh window likely origina to thisaddition. A large ssgmentd- arched doorway on the west devation
provides acoess to the fire pump room. Thisdoorway has been partialy filled with brick and decorative concrete
block to accommodate a modem sted door. The current 130" tapering cylindrical tile chimney, built by the
American Chimney Corporation (NY), dates to post-1918."

" A surviving ged desnout door &t the bese of the dimney is insaribed with the company neme: This corporationwes formed in
1918
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Building No. 3

Weave House (1884 & sg., contributing)
184 Woonasquatucket Avenue

The Weave House as built in 1834 was asingle-gtory brick, 80" x 135, shdlow gable roofed smcture with a
frame south wall to accommodate anticipated expanson. A centrd frame derestory monitor provided additiona
light to the interior. The north elevation of thisbuilding, originaly exposed, became an interior wall with the
constmction of Mill No. 2in 1887. By 1890 the building was enlarged on the south to creste a 122" x
135footprint.” A sscond clerestory roof monitor was added as well. Some once-exterior wallsare still visible
within the building. Much of the present-day exposed eevations are sheethed in ether plywood or vinyl. Frame
constmction of the south wall boimded by brick piers a ether end suggests that the Lymansville Company
conddered, but never executed, fiirther southward expansion of this building. The two monitors festure
continuous bands of wood-frame saeh windowsthat are currently plywood-covered. All windows on this
building are ether plywood-covered or of modem constmction. A non-contributing one-story, shed-roofed,
concrete block, 80" x 20" addition to the west wall of this building dates to between 1956 and 1965.

Mill No. 4
Finishing Building (1887, ca 1890, et s=q., contributing)
184 Woonasguatucket Avenue

A brick pier and soandrd building, 22 bayslong and 8 bayswide on the east end, but narrower on the west end
where it abutsBuilding No.3. Thisbuilding hes two upper ories and a basement that isfully exposed on the
west end due to the natural downward dopeof the property west of Mill No. 1 (see Additional Information,
Fgure 5). Thisbuilding isthe product of three campaigns carried out between 1887 and ca 1920. Original
overal dimensons were 144'x 50'. By 1890 the building had been expanded five baysaong its length to the
current dimension of 220. Between 1905 and 1921 the rear (south) wall was moved out 20'. These additions
cregted the present-day overall dimensons of 2200 x 70'.

The roof is a shalow-pitched gable; the eest evation exhibits evidence of the changein roofline effectedin the
early 20"-century southerly expanson. The foundationis granite. The westernmost bay (dlosest to the gair
tower) provides amodem glassand meta doorway on the ground floor; this isthe main entranceto Mill No. 4.
Above this entrance on the sscond floor is aformer freight door opening, now plywood-filled.

Framing is dow-buming mill constmction: chamfered timber columns support afloor sysem of heavy timber
beams and heavy plank flooring. Origina paired, double-himg, wood-frame windowswere st in ssgmentd arch
openings basament level windows were 6/6; ground floor windows were 9/12; second-gtory windowswere 9/9.
These have been replaced with duminum szghin the same manner as thaseof Mill No. 1.

The building historically housed worstedfini shingon the first floor, sorting on the second floor, and washing
and scouring in the basament. A depresson dong the north devation of thisbuilding isthe intact but dry section
of the tailrace that remains (sse Hydraulic Features below).

" Davison's Textile Blue Baok nates the use of 70 loomsin 1899, Two years later thisniunber hed increesed to 100 and, by 1906, to
120.
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Building No. 5

Office Building (between 1895 and 1901, contributing)
184 Woonasguatucket Avenue

A two-gtory, brick,flat-roofedbuilding on a granite ashlar and wetlaid mbble foundation atached to the esst
eevation of Mill No. 1. Thisbuilding replaced the origina first floor offices housad within Mill No. 1 dnce
1884. The building hes an irregular trapezoidd plan with anarrow angled front that conforms to the dignment
of Woonasguatucket Avenue. Overal dimendons are 32' x 50'. Windows are mid-20"-century duminum
insarts s in origina segmentd arch openings. Sills are quarry-faced granite. Granite sepslead to a ssgmentd
arch door opening that is now partially bricked-in. A modem auminum and glassdoorway is s in thisopening.
An aeaof brick infill and achangein the granite masonry below indicate that acurrent south elevation window
opening was once adoorway. The interior is clear span. Original headboard ceilings are visible above modem
sugpended cellings. A late-20™ century wood and sted darcase leadsto the upper floor.

Building No. 6
Dye House (1951, contributing)
184 Woonasguatucket Avenue

A 1- and 2-gstory, concrete block stmcture with a shalow gable roof built in 1951 to replace an earlierfi-ameDye
House Interior framing is sed /-beamsand postswith a concrete floor. There are twoflat-roof edconcrete
block additions dong the south wall, the first of which (between 1951 and 1956) required an angled comer
becaus= of its proximity to the Woonasguatucket River. Thisaddition provided a loading dock on its north
devation adjacent to Mill No. 4. Although predominantly single-story, aframe sscond story smcture occupies
about 30" of the south éevation of this. Onthisrased sory, there is acontinuous band of eight, four-light
windows. A modem, sed door enframed by glassblock provides entry to this sscond story space The second
south addition (ca. 1965) isaconcrete block smcture that housed a generator room and ftiel oil tank. The
dyehouse hes been determined by the Rhode Idand Department of Environmental Managemant to be
contaminated with hazardous materias.

Building 7
Factory Building (between 1937 and 1956, contributing)
184 Woonasguatucket Avenue

Between 1937 and 1956, the Lymansville Company built alow, 48' x 164" flat-roofed,one-story, brick, poured
concrete and concrete block building atached to the west wall of Mill No. 1 There are four freight doors on the
north and a continuous band of rectangular, 9-light, sted-frame windows on the west e evation, now plywood-
covered. Low, brick pargpet wallscap the north and south devations. Framing is comprised of sed /-beams
and one row of round section sed columns. Although historical insurance mgpssmply labd this building a
"Factory Building," it gopears to have been used for Sorage and shipping. The floor is concrete. Four metd
skylights were removed after 1965.
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Contributing Structures:

Bridge/Filter House
(1951, contributing)

Spanning the former tailrace, this is acomplex ssmcture, the dominant visua feature of which isa concrete
bridge deck resting on ded girders. The bridge provides access to Mill No. 4 and the stairtower from the entry
drive. Thisisthe only surviving bridge of the threethat once sparmed the plant's raceways”™ The bridge provides
a 14'-wide pessege and i1s 20" inlength. The railing, comprised of 3" and 4" iron pipe, gopearsto dateto the
congmction of thisbridge in early-mid 20* century. Accessto the bridge is currently restricted to pedestrian
use two large concrete blocks prevent vehicle access

Ca.l900 photographs of this areaof the plant show aframe bridge resting on and integra with aframe building
bdow (sse Additional Information, Figure 6). Further research may reved the precisefianctionor evolution of
thisbuilding. Itislabded a"Store House' on the 1921 Sanbom Map Company migp. Itislikely that the Store
House and the frame bridge were removed for the constmction of the current bridge and Filter Housein
conjunction with the constmction of the 1951 Dye House

The north abutment of the bridge is a predominantly concrete smcture incorporating some wetlaid mbble
masonry presumably from an earlier abutment. The south abutment is a concrete smcture that incorporates the
flat-roofed 50' x 15' concrete filter house. It isatached to the north wall of Mill No. 4 and the eest wall of Mill
No. 1 Itwas congmcted in 1951 to filter water for the newly-built Dye House (Building No. 6). Threeroughly
12'- diameter vertical iron pipes exit the north face of the ssmcture to join acommon horizonta pipe. This
dgmcture contains a 25,000 gallon water tank. Partsof this smcture havefi-ameshed roofs; other parts have
concrete roofs. Afi-ameroof section closest to the stairtower isfailing.

Hydraulic Features
(1809 et ==q. to 1939, contribufing)

Although the Lymansville Mill ceased the use of waterpower around 1942, several artifacts of thissystem
remain. Theseresources, treated collectively as a single Contributing Sructure, are described bel ow.

Generd. The 1809 Lyman Cotton Manufacturing Company water privilegeN' providing afall of 10', wes
acquired in 1884 by the Lymansville Company and adgpted to address the power requirements of the new plant.
Mill No. 1 (1884 et s20.) was dted similarly to the earlier mill S0 that the heedrace ran a short straight course
fromacontrol gate on the eest bank of the pond (removed in the mid-20™' century) to the Whed House in the
besament of Mill No. 1. Thetailrace, after exiting through the arched opening in the mill's eest elevation, ran a
similarly straight route c. 600" to empty back into the river downstream. The water power sygem aso included a
heed gate (parts of which survive) on the west Sde of the mill that controlled the water's flow into the mill and

" This and ane other bridge gpaned the tailrace in the vicinity of Mill No. 4; athird bridge goanned the heedrace in the
vicinity of the Boiller/Engine House

" This water privilege, a desribed in William Bagndl's The Textile Industries of the United States (p. 545) wes
edeblished by Danid Lymen through three land purdheses dong the Woonesguatucket River in 1800, The 1835
Lodkwood and Cushing Mg of The City of Providence andthe Toamn of North Providence dows agzable impoundmant
extending dmod to Allendale, the next updream water privilege.
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two Perfection Turbines*" that produced 120 HP. By 1890 the plant operated fully on waterpower for four
months of the year, supplementing thiswith deam power for the remaining eight months. After the water power
sysdem was ebandoned c. 1942, the raceswere filled; aportion of the tailrace survives inthe present-day
depresson extending eest from the tallrace arch adong the north elevation of Mill No. 4.

Lymansville Dam (RIDEM Dam No. 134). The current dam dates to areconstmction and improvement carried
out in 1936 by the Lymansville Company. This concrete and masonry stmcture weas designed by civil engineer
0. Pery Sale and built by the Tucker Constmction Company. The spillway is 105'1ong

Headrace. At the upper end of the headrace some minor masonry remains indicate the location of the gates that
regulated water flow from the pond, but the gates are no longer extant. Most of the heedrace was filled in by
1950, though a 3'-high, concrete retaining wall enclosing the filled raceway besde and pardld to the north
elevation of the Boiler/Engine House. Thisenclosure isroughly 20" wide, and 60'long. At its eestem end there
isaded duice gaethat regulated flow of water to the turbines inthe Whed House in the basament of Mill No.
1. Aningpection of this basement hes yielded no surface remains of the Whed House or turbines; there may,
however, be sub-surface remains, including turbines.

Tailrace. All that remains of thisraceway isaroughly 200'-long depresson that extends from the tailrace arch
in the eest levation of Mill No. 1 aong the north elevation of Mill No. 4. A150'-long concrete retaining wall
forms the north edge of the depresson.

Non-contributing building:

Garage (before 1921). A roughly 25-square, shed-roofed ssmcture on a concrete dab. Sheathing isship-lap
(novelty) board siding. There are two west elevation garagedoors no longer in use one is plywood-covered and
the other isametd overhead door.

Guard House (after 1965) A roughly 8 sguarevinyl-sided shed with aconcrete foimdation across the entrance
drive Irom the Office Wing.

These turbines, devdopad in Dublin, Irdand, by Cade and Ridgeway were noted for ther efficiency, smplicity of
operaion, and gable oparaion in paiods of low aswell as high water. Se= The Manufacturer and Inventor (20 April
1891): 23.
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8. Statement of Significance

Applicable National Register Criteria
(Mart< "x" in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the property
for National Register listing.)

Property is associated with events that have made a

significant contribution to the broad patterns of our
history.

e B Property is associated with the lives of persons
significant in our past.

Property embodies the distinctive characteristics

of a type, period, or method of construction or
represents the work of a master, or possesses high
artistic values, or represents a significant

and distinguishable entity whose components lack
individual distinction.

D Property has yielded, or is likely to yield, information
important in prehistory or history.

Criteria Considerations
(Mark "x" In all the boxes that apply.)

Property is:

A Owned by a religious institution or used for religious
purposes.

B removed from its original location.

C ahbirthplace or grave.

D acemetery.

E areconstructed building, object, or structure.
F acommemorative property.

G less than 50 years old or achieving significance
within the past 50 years.

Period of Significance (justification)

(Expires 5/31/2012)

Providence County, RI
County and State

Areas of Significance
(Enter categories from instructions.)

INDUSTRY
ARCHITECTURE

Period of Significance

1884-1957

Significant Dates

1884, 1887, ca 1900, 1939, 1951

Significant Person
(Complete only if Criterion B is mariced above.)

Cultural Affiliation

Architect/Builder
A. Albert Sack, others

O. Perry Sarle (Lymansville Dam)

The period of significance represents the period of active occupation by the Lymansville Company.

Criteria Considerations (explanation, if necessary)
N/A

10
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Statement of Significance Summary Paragraph

The Lymansville Company Mill complex isthe physica expresson of more than seventy years of woolen
worgted spirming, weaving, andfinishingin North Providence, Rhode Idand. It is significant on the Sate level
under National Regiger Criterion A for itsassociation with worsted manufacture in the late 19*- and early
20"-century, when Rhode Idand was a leader in that branch of the textileindustry. The mill was desgned and
operated by A. Albert Sack (1843-1925), who leamed the woolen and worgted tradesin his native Germany,
worked his way through the ranks of severd New England textile firms, and established himself as a successtul
worgted entrepreneur in the late 1870s. Congmcted by the newly-formed Lymansville Company in 1834 ad
expanded and improved over the following two decades the Lymansville Company Mill exemplifies the rise of
Rhode Idand's woolen and worsted industry to apreeminent datusin the state's dominant textile economy. The
later higtory of the company, which dosed in 1957, dso illustrates the worgted industry's decline following the
end of Word Wer IL

The Lymansville Company Mill is significant on the state level under Criterion C as afineexample of late

19" and early 20™-century architecture of the New England woolen and worsted industry. Representative of the
de and siting of Rhode 1dand woolen and worsted miills of the era, this plant representsthe characteristic
design, stmctura, and functional features that typified mills erected for the manufacture of worsted yam and
cloth during the industry's period of prominence inthe late 19" and early 20™ century.

Narrative Statement of Significance
Rhode | dand Worsed Manufacture

Worgted yam manufacture differs from that of ordinary wool in that the wool fibers are sorted either by length
(the English or Bradford sysem) or by fineness (the French or Continental system) and then combed before
spinning. Worged yams are amoother and lighter than regular wool and produce higher quality cloth. The
worgted industry hed its beginnings in England and was established inthe United States by the 1830s Ore of
the earliest of these American mills was the Valey Worgsted Mill established by James Giles in Providence in
1842. The popularity of worgted cloth inthe United States rose significantly after its promotion & the Paris
Exposition of 1867 and the Centeimia Exhibition, held in Philadelphiain 1876.

By 1870, therewere 11 worsted mills in Rhode Idand, mos of which had been established after the Civil War.
By the doseof the 19"-century, the statesworsted industry had surpassad its long-dominant cotton industry
with 51 establishmentsand 14, 896 employees. Rhode Idand was the third ranking satefor the production of
worgsted goodsand Providence contained the largest concentration of worsted production in the country. By the
late 19" century, worgted manufacture had surpassed both cotton and wool production in Rhode Idand. The
majority of Providencesworsted mills were clustered in the Woonasguatucket River valley in Olneyville, a
short distance downdgream fi-om Lymansville. The majority of the Rhode Idand mills, including the Lymansville
Company, employed the English sysem, though Woonsocket became a center of French worgted production
beginning in the 1890s

After reeching apesk in the early 20* century, Rhode Idand's worsted industry contracted during the second
decadeof the 20 century. The demand for worsted cloth for military uniformsstimulated the industry during
World Wer |, but the wartime boom was followed by a prolonged period of decline for the New England textile
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industry as awhole. Conditions worsened with the Great Depresson; and as manufactiirers cut production and
wages, mill operatives protested. Rhode Idanders joined inloca drikes and the Great Textile Strike in 1934,
which involved four hundred thousand textileworkers on strike for 22 days throughout the country. These
demondrations of labor militancy convinced many textile manufacturers to clasetheir mills or leave New
England for the American South (and subsequently, oversees). Wordeds, as afiner good, fared better than
cottons and coarse woolens during the depression years, and Rhode Idand worgted production once again
benefited from awartime boom with the onset of World War I1. Thisactivity could not be sustained and inthe
decade following the war's end, the major worsted mills in Rhode Idand closed, leaving only smdl niche
producers™"

A. Albert Sack and the Lymansville Company

Augugte Albert Sack was bom in Handdde," Germany, in 1843. Asayoung man he completed four years of
professond schooling that included training in the worsted and woolen trades.” In 1867 & the age of twenty-
five he emigrated to the United States Hisfirst employment in this country was as adedgner for the Edward
Harris Woolen Company inWoonsocket. By the early 1870she had sarved inthe same capacity a the Everett
Mills (Lawrence, MA), and the BaesMills (Lewiston, ME). Hisfirst supervisory position was with the Boston
commisson house, Leland, Allen and Bates, where he oversaw the woolen mills owned by this company.

He rdocated to North Providence in 1873 to become superintendent of the worsted operation mn by Owen and
Clark in the GenevaMill, which they leased from Charles Heeton and Martin Cowing. Sack remained with
Owen and Clark until he purchased the GenevaMill from Heaton and Cowingin 1879."" He managed the
operation of the GenevaWorged Mill until 1884 a which time he and partners George L. Davis™ and John A.
Brown purchesaed the Lymansville Mill estate, whichincluded a substantia mill privilege and a modest-9zed
mill village on the Woonasguatucket River.""" Thisprivilege and cotton mill had been inthe Lyman family
ance 1809 until it was sold to textile entrepreneurs F.R. and H.C. Whiteé"” in 1877. Sadk and his partners, who
incorporated as the Lymansville Company™™ inearly 1884, purchasad the plant and 40 acres of land from the
Whites.

Gay Kuvik, Rhode Idand: An Inventory of Historic and Industrid Sites pp. 21-25.
Other souress lig Sack's hirthplace as RFosen, a Gamen city condderably to the south and neer the barder with the
present-day Czech Republic.
" This training dso induded finance and banking.
The GanevaWorded Mill weas purdhesed by a partnership that induded Sadk and SB. ad Morris Uliman.

Davis (1844-1921) wes apatner in Davis ad Furber, awdl-established manufacturer of textile mechinary in North
Andover, MA. Sack married Daviss 9gter Alice in 1879.

Mot of thisearly mill complex wes demadlished in order to build the complex that isthe subject of this document. The
origind Lymen Mill (1809 & s3) ishigtoricaly important for its early employment of power looms as devdoped by
William Gilmore (and improved by David Wilkinson) in 1817. For a thorough examination of the introduction of the
powe loom to the Rhode Idand cotton industry, see Procsadings of the Rhode [dand Sodetyfor the Encourageamant of
Domedtic Indudtry for the year 1864: pps 59-92.

According to the 1830 Fedad Cawrus the White operaion a Lymansvilleemployed 47 operdiives in the production
of cottonwarp. A 12 fall on the Woonesouatucket River powered 42" ad 52" turbines producing 80 HP.

"An Act to Incorporate the Lymansville Company.” Private Acts of the Rhode Idand Genad Assambly, May Sesson
1834, p. 37.
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In 1884, Sack supervised the constmction of a modem worsted plant that included abrick, three-story, pier ad
goandre, 80" x 80" main building with an extema sair tower (Mill No. 1). Thisbuilding housed the combing
and drawing operations on the first floor as well as the company offices. The second floor had the carding
operations and the third floor, spinning. The building was Sted <0 that its heedrace entered the mill
perpendicularly on the west elevation where it powered two turbines producing 100 horsgpower in the besement
whedhouse. Thetallrace exited through an arch on the eest devation and retumed water to the river about 600°
esdt of the building.

Sack chosenot to finish the north wall of Mill No. 1 in brick, but, rather, to use wood framing and clgpboard to
facilitate expangon in the near future. Attached to the south elevation of Mill No. 1wasa 135 x 80', sngle-
gory Weave House (Building No. 3) housing gpproximately 30 looms. Similar to the constmcfionof Mill No. 1,
this building hed three brick ddesand aframe south wall to alow eeser expanson. The final building of the
origina plant wasa40' x 65' Boiler/Engine House (Building No. 2) sited paralld to the heedrace and atached
to Mill No. 1 Themill wasin operation by November 1884. In 1885, the first ftiU year of operation, the
company produced 170,000 pounds of yam and 150,000 yards of cloth. By 1901, employing some 400
operatives, thisannud product had increesed to 1,200,000 pounds of yan and one million yards of cloth vaued
a more than $1,000,000.""

Within afew years of setting up operations. Sack had established sdessoomsin New Y ork and seven other
citiesto sdll worsted goods direct to the garment manufacturers, rather than through agents Late 19*'-century
sources described the Lymansville Company as™...the only establishment in the country that sdlls and ddivers
goods direct from the factory to the consumer.” "'

Early Labor Strifeat Lymansville

The successfiil operation of the Lymansville Company Mill and smilar textile enterprises depended on awide
rangeof factors, both extemal, such as the markets for raw materials andfini shedproducts, and intemal, such as
technica operations and managemant of |abor. Rdations between manegemeant and operatives were an
increasingly important agpect of manufacturingin the late 19" century and, similar to other millsin the region,
the Lymansville Company experienced periods of conflict in the workplace.

Shortly after the commencement of work a Lymansville, aJanuary 21, 1886 strike shut down the plant, a labor
action that developed under the strong influence, if not the direction, of the Knightsof Labor. "*" Although not
aformal armof the Knights of Labor, weavers and loom fixersa the plant, under the leedership of weaver and

Bayles Higory of Providence County (Vol. [1, 1891), pps 18991 ad Hal, Biogrgphicd Higory of the
Manufacturers and Busnessmen of Rhode Idand (1901), p. 182,

“Nbid.

This ealy labor organization, formed in Philaddphiain 183, experiencaed a dramatic nationd growth to 700,000
marbasly theealy 1880sand this influence extended to Rhode Idand, particularly the Satels textile mills. By 1836
the gate Knights of Labor organization, with astrong bese of support in the wodlen and wordted mills of Olneyville,
boegted some 12000 mambas Knights of Labor agitation figured prominently in anumber of high-prafile textile drikes
of the period (uch as thosein Manvilleand Ganeva). The dramatic rise and dedine of this organization is well-
documanted in Paul Buhle, "The Knights of Labor in Rhode Idand," Radical History Review (Spring 1978): 39. During
thisperiod labor and capita both sought support in collective organizations, textile mill ownarsformed the Sater Club to
provide mutud ad agang |abor agitation. This group represanted 0% of textile manufacturers
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Knights of Labor member George Lee, established acommittee to address anumber of shop grievances. The
weavers desired apermanent committee respongble for presenting grievances to and negotiating resolutions
with owner Sack. The committee sought to addresswhat a reporter for the Morning Star, a Providence pro-labor
newspaper, caled apattem of "shabby treatmenf™™ by the plant'soverseers

Prominent among the grievances was the company management's system of hand-measuring of finished

worgted cloth and assesament of wagesorfinesbasad on the amount and quality of cloth produced. Of

particular concem to the strikerswerefi nesdeamed arbitrary and punitive, often amounting to a significant
portion of wagesand, in many cases baeing no fault of the weaver." Theweavers, who were paid by length of
cloth woven rather than by the hour, maintained that overseers (commonly caled "perchers') had been ordered
by managament to cheat the weavers in the messurement of woven cloth and demanded that a machine sysem

of messurement be installed. Subsequent remeasurement of woven cloth in the presence of the three aggrieved
weavers and the Weave House supervisor established that the weavers had, in fact, produced more cloth than the

amount assessad by management.

Despite a shutdown of five weeks. Sack made no concessions, threatening a one point to close the plant
permanently. Even when the weavers dropped their demand for the committee, calling indeed for araise of 1 Vi
cents"onal pattems of goodsof morethan eighty picks," Sadk refused, offering only to reopen the doors of the
mill to someof the weavers, increasing work gradudly as demand required.™

The origina demand and ultimate failureof the Knightsof Labor to institutionalize aworkers committee &
Lymansville and the company's successin ssimply waifing out the strike exemplify onaloca leve the rise and
decline of the movement. After the summer of 1886 the Knights of Labor experienced adramatic decline, both
nationaly and locally. By 1900 national membership numbered about 20,000.

A locd development that may have been a leadt partially in regponseto thislabor difficulty was Albert Sack's
recmitment of German immigrantsto work in hismill. US Censusrecords show that from only tenindividuas
of German birth in North Providence in 1880 the number grew to forty-five by 1900, with the majority of them
textile workers. Though Gamans never became adominant proportion of the 400 to 600 person workforce, they
became adigtinctive part of village character through features such as a Garman band. Sadk dso laid out new

Morning Star (23 Januery 1886). See ftill catation in the Unpublished Materia section of the Bibliography.

The most odeorated of grievances assodated with the Lymansville Compeany's sysem of finesinvolved a weaver
rnemed Frak Shaw, againg whom fines of $838.25 were deducted from weges eamed batwean April ad Novembear 1885,
This, desaribed by a reporter for The People, the organ of the Knights of Labor in Rhode Idand, a8 "unbearable” forced
Saw to leave the employ of the company and sask work dsewhere The People published alengthy artide during the
drike describing in detall the respongihilities of theweaver in loom tending and cloth imperfections identified by
menegamat as caue forfines. See "The Saw Fining Cas= A Complee Hidory of the Affair from the Beginning,” The
People (20 February 1886), p. 1.

Thisgrikeis addressed in asaries of pro-labor artides that gopeared in the Providence Morning Star in January ad
February 18%6. These atides are found in the Labor News Clippings collection in the Univeraty of Rhode Idand
Library's Soedid Callections. Maolloy, Scott, "'Labor news dippings, 22 sargpbooks 1867-1902" (1993). Spedid
Cadllections Publications. Pgpar 3. hitp://digitdl commonsuri.edu/sc_pubs/3

14



United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Fonn

NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-0018 (Expires 5/31/2012)
Lymansville Company Mill Providence County, RI
Name of Property County and State

Srests in the village and encouraged residentsto constmct private housing rather live in company built

Another labor action occurred a Lymansville in 1916, which was settled to the benefit of the strikers. On
Friday, January 28 of that year 400 of the plant's 600 workers smck the plant demanding an end to apay sydem
in which the company held any individual eamings over even dollar amounts imtil that balance accumulated to a
fiill dollar. The workers demanded full payment each week, apolicy cdled the "envelope sysem.” The workers
a0 demanded a 5% increese in wages over the 5% the company offered. The company regoonded by shutting
down the plant. Unlike the eventsof the mid-1880s, Sack conceded four dayslater to the institution of the
enveope sydem of pay and an effective pay rase of 8%.

This successful gtriketypified amore durable and politically significant rise in labor agitation, membership, and
conflict throughout the statethat would contribute in no small meesureto an upending in the 1930s of the old
political gmcture that hed relied on textile wealth and its control of Rhode 1dand sate govemment. Thedae
dection of 1936 saw adramatic shift of power to Democrats representing the newly-enfranchised, largdy
ethnic. Catholic working dassof the gate™™

Lymansville in the Twentieth Century

Compeny founder A. Albert Sadk died in April 1925. An obituary in the Providence Journal noted that a man
who "came herewith nothing," rose through the ranks of New England woolen and worsted manufacturers to
esablish himsealf as an industry and civic leeder.™ After his death, the company was sold to Fred S Peck
(1868-1947) of Barrington, RI. Peck was aprominent figurein Rhode Idand as apolitical leader of the
Republican Party and as acapitdist involved in avariety of enterprises, including his family'swool bugness
AsaPack & Co.""" The Lymansville Company continued in operation under Peck's direction through the years
of the Grest Depresson and much of World War |l It is noteworthy that the Lymansville Company maintained
aworkforce of 500 operatives during these very difficult yearsfor the worgted trede™"

In 1944 Peck sold the Lymansville plant to Mack Kahn, owner of severd textile mills operating under the name
Kanmak Mills, which included the Amoskeag Mill (Manchester, NH) and the Kanmak Mill (Kulpmont, PA). By
1950, Kahn had carried out athorough modemization program for the nearly 60-year-old mill, replacing 90% of
the mill machinery. Kahn's main contribution to the physica evolution of the plant was the constmction of a
new, 10,000 5. ft. Dye House (Building No. 6) in 1951. This$2 million investment increesed Lymansville's

™ Bayles pp. 190-191; Historic and Architectura Resouross of North Providence (Rhode Idand Historical Presarvation
ad Heitage Commisson), p. 34.
™" This trandormation ad itsrdation to labor action within the sates textile indudtry isdesribed in Paul Buhlés
"ltdian-American Radicds and Labor in Rhode Idand.” Radicd History Review 17 (Soring 1978), pp. 121-51.

"A. Albert Sk, 82, Frominat Mill Man, Dies" Providence Journd (2 April 1925), p. 1L

Pack'slife as a textile manufacturer, civic leeder, bibliophile and builder of Bdton Court in Barrington is disoussed &
length in the Nationd Regge of Higtoric Haoes nomination form for Belton Court, onfile, Rl Historica Presarvation
ad Heitage Commisson, Providence,

The 19% edition of Davison's Textile Blue Book ligts 120 broadooms, 14 worded cards, 11 wordted combs and 500
opadives
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piece dyeing capacity to 2000 units per wek."'" Interviewed a the time, Kahn sooke of the transformation
"...of an aging mill into amodem, integrated operation abdle to meet the competition of mills anywhere in the
world." Kahn assarted that this integration—from raw wool to finished product— permitted his mills to operate
on anarrower profit margin a each sageof production than non-integrated mills. (However, integration was not
new & the Lymansville mill, which had been established as an integrated plant by A. Albert Sack.)™ "

Kahn's invesment a Lymansville was a cdculated risk, as the New England woolen and worsted industry was
continuing to declinein the face of severd trends. One trend was the development of new blended wool and
synthetic cloth which was chegper to miake and supplanting worgteds in the marketplace. Another was the
devd opment of the worsted industry in the South in the late 1940s. The New England worsted companies now
faced the same problem of competition from modem facilitiesmn with chegper [abor that the cotton industry
had experienced a generation earlier. The situation was a0 exacerbated by a generdly weak consumer

XXIX

economy.

While therewere initial Sgnsthat Kahn's srategy was working, as employment a the plant rosefrom 415
operdives in 1950 to 650 in 1954, the Lymansville Company experienced seriousfinancial difficulties and was
idled and put up for sdein the early summer of 1956. The plant's 650 operdives logt their jobs. Whatever the
immediate causeof the mill's closng, Kahn lost his bet on the future of worsted production a Lymansville, and
his investments in new production a the mill came to naught. Kanmak, unable to securea buyer willing to
operate Lymansville as aworsted mill, decided inMarch 1957 to sdll the plant's new equipment piecemed. The
former textile plant was purchased in late 1957 by the Ronci Redty Company and leesad to avariety of tenants,
mogt of which were involved in costume jewelry and related manufacture™"" Ronci held the property until its
purchase by Theta Properties in 1987."""" But for the occupation of Mill No. 4 by jewelry manufacturer
Fernando Originals, the plant is now vacant. The owners are plarming the rehabilitation of the plant for
resdentia use

Ar chitectural Significance

The Lymansville Company plant features the representative architectural characterigtics of Rhode Idand
worgted mills of the late 19 and early-20™ centuries. These includethe forms, materids, consgmction and
arangement of the mill buildings. The core buildings are brick, multi-story stmctures with shalow pitched
gable roofs and pier and spandrd walls that accommodate regular rowsof tall windowswith segmentd-arched
heads.(Although the original multi-pane wooden sssh have been replaced, the pattem of tall paired windows
flanking acentral mullion in each opening isintact.) Exterior omament isvery minimal, confined to the
corbelled comice on the stairtower and carved rafter ends The interior framing is heavy timber or mill
congtmction which features heavy wooden beams and columns supporting solid plank floors, al desgned to be
fire-resistive. The extemd dair towers provide additiond fire protection by housing the vertica circulation
outside of the maininterior oaces The interiors are typicaly open plan, with parallel rowsof columns, painted
brick walls, and metd-sheethed fire doors separating the passageway's between sections.

"""l bid.
"LymansvilleMill StartsDye House" Providence Journd (26 Sgatamba 1951),p. 13
Se William F. Hartford, Wharés Our Responshility? Unions and Economic Change in the Nev England Textile
Indugtry, 18701960 (\996), pp. 120-123; 152,
Quitdam deed, 53:251 Lymansville Compary to Rond Redty Company, October 15, 1957.
North Providence Desd Book 168, p.| 158
16



United States Department of the Inferior
National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-0018 (Expires 5/31/2012)
Lymansville Company Mill Providence County, RI
Name of Property County and State

The plant layout congds of individua buildings that share physica connections while retaining large anounts
of unobstmcted window space The building formsvary as to their functions with the tall narrow mill form
housing the carding, combing and spinning departments and low broad forms usad for the Weave Shed and the
Dyehouse Inthe latter two buildings with their larger footprints, additional naturd lighting was provided by
overhead monitor windows (though these have been removed from the Dyehouse). The Lymansville Company
plant ds0 exhibits evidence of adgptation and later additions. These include additionsto Mill No. 1 that use ged
framing rather than wood and the reconstmction of the Dyehouse using concrete block and sted. Notably, the
Dyehouse and other concrete block additions mede in the 1950s reflect a bresk from the red brick that
characterized thisand other Rhode Idand textile mills from the mid-19"" century.
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10. Geographical Data

Acreage of Property 13 acres
(Do not include previously listed resource acreage.)
UTM References

(Place additional UTM references on a continuation sheet.)

1 19 294500 4634000 3 19 294300 4634600
Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing
2 19 294660 4634860 4 19 294280 4634940
Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing

Verbal Boundary Description (Describe the boundaries of the property.)

The boundaries of the Lymansville Company Mill are contiguous with those of North Providence Assessor's
Map 10, Lot 91 d=o including the westem end of the dam, which isaportion of Johnston Assessor's Hat 34,
Lot 234. See Additional Information, Figure9.

Boundary Justification
These boundaries represent the land historically associated with the Lymansville Mill from 1884 to the present.

11. Form Prepared By

nameftitte Edward Connors

organization Edward Connors and Associates date August 2012

street & number 39 Dyer Avenue telephone

city or town Riverside state RI zip code 02915
e-mail nconnors®©.cox.net

Additional Documentation
Submit the following items with the completed form:

« Maps: AUSGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property's location.

A Sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources. Key all
photographs to this map.

 Continuation Sheets

» Additional items: (Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional items.)
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Photographs:

Submit clear and descriptive photographs. The size of each image must be 1600x1200 pixels at 300 ppi (pixels per inch)
or larger. Key all photographs to the sketch map.

Name of Property: Lymansville Company Mill

City or Vicinity: North Providence

County: Providence State: Rhode Island
Photographer: Edward Connors, Richard Greenwood (8, 12, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18)
Date Photographed: January, September, October 2012

Description of Photograph(s) and number:

Exterior:

Number 1 of 18: Mill No. 1, stairtower and Mill No. 4, view south (September 2012)

Number 2 of 18: Building 5 and Mill No. 1, view west (October 2012)

Number 3 of 18: Mill No. 1 and Building 7, view southeast (October 2012)

Number 4 of 18: View to Boiler House and chimney along Mill No. 1 and Building 7, view southeast (September 2012)
Number 5 of 18: Boiler House, view southeast (October 2012)

Number 6 of 18: Weave Shed, view northeast (September 2012)

Number 7 of 18: Dye House, view northeast (September 2012)

Number 8 of 18: Mill No. 4 (north elevation) and tailrace area, view west (September 2012)

Number 9 of 18: View to bridge and stairtower, view south (September 2012)

Number 10 of 18: Mill No. 4 (east elevation), view west (October 2012)

Number 11 of 18: Lymansville Dam, view southwest (September 2012)

Interior:

Number 12 of 18: Timber framing, Mill No. 1, view westerly (September 2012)

Number 13 of 18: Timber framing detail, Mill No. 4 (October 2012)

Number 14 of 18: Boiler Room interior (January 2012)

Number 15 of 18: Weave Shed interior framing and clerestory monitor, view northeasterly (September 2012)

Number 16 of 18: Dye House, view southerly (September 2012)

Number 17 of 18: Original Stairtower, Mill No.l, third floor landing and freight door, view northeasterly (September 2012)

Number 18 of 18: Early 20* century, Stairtower, Mill No.l, view northerly (September 2012)
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Property Owner:
(Complete this item at the request of the SHPO or FPO.;

name
street & number telephone
city or town state zip code

Paperwork Reduction Act Statement: This infonnation is being collected for applications to the National Register of Historic Places to nominate
properties for listing or determine eligibility for listing, to list properties, and to amend existing listings. Response to this request Is required to obtain a
benefit In accordance wifith the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended (16 U.S.C.460 et seq.).

Estimated Burden Statement: Public reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 18 hours per response including time for reviewing
instructions, gathering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding this burden estimate or any aspect of
this form lo the Office of Planning and Perfomnance Management. U.S. Dept. of the Interior, 1849 C. Street, NW, Washington, DC.

Additional I nformation

Figurel

llustration of Lymansville Company Mill from Barlow's Insurance Survey No. 8241
depicting original mill & built in 1834 (before congtruction of Mill No. 4).
(L) first Weave House (south wall, not visible in this view, was wood frame to allow for expansion),
fiilly exposed Sartower before the lower two Stories of its eest e evation were incorporated into floor plan of Mill No. 4,
first formof Mill No. 1 (note frame north end of building to alow for expansion), and partia view of Boiler House with
original square-section chimney.
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8£41
LYMANSVILLE Co.,
5
3

vV

Figure 2

Plan of Lymansville Company Mill from Barlow's Insurance Survey No. 8241 Supplement (1887)
This plan showsthe grestly enlarged Mill No. 1, the increaseto four boilers in the Boiler/Engine House (2), the Weave
House (3) with dotted lines indicating planned expanson, and the Sairtower integrated with Mill No.4.

Figure 3
Lymansville Company Mill (1890)
From Board of Trade Journal (October-November 1890)

Showing (1-) the 15-bay form of Mill No. 4 & buih in 1887.
To the right isMill No. 1as expanded in 1887.
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Name of Property County and State
Figure 4

Lymansville Company Mill (1901)
From JD. Hall, Biographical History of the Manufacturersand Budnessmen of Rhode Idand..
Showing (1-r) Mill No. 4 as expanded ca. 1890 and Mill No. 1 with attached Office Building (5).

Figure5
Lymansville Company Mill (1905)
Engraving from 7" Annual Report of the Commissioner of Industrial Statistics (1905)
Showing (1-r) Mill No. 4 with first Dye House behind,
expanded Weave House behind stairtower. Mill No. 1with smal monitor roof.
Office Building, and expanded Boiler/Engine House.
The small building shown partially inthe upper right was the only building
retained from the earlier Lyman Cotton Manufacturing Co. plant.

It wes repaired by the Lymansville Co. after 1884, usad as a Sorehouseand demolished after 1978.

Note incorporation of building (over tailrace) into the bridge a the base of the stairtower.
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Figure6

Lymansville Company Mill (1909, Rl Siate Archives photo)
(2-r) Mill No. 4, dartower. Siore House over tallrace, and Mill No. 1
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LYMFfINSVSLLE Co.
WORSTED MILL

Figure7

Detail from 1921 Sanbom Fire Insurance Map showing expanson of Boiler/Engine House to accommodate 5 boilers,
first Dye House, south extenson of Mill No. 4, Store House (Filter House) below bridge over tailrace,
and company housing north of Mill No. 1 dong Woonasguatucket Avenue.
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Figure 8
Ronci Realty Company, Inc. (1965)
Detail from New England Insurance Rating Association drawing EIB-163 showing current conditions.
During this period the plant was utilized for multiple, light industrial tenancy.
Note: The basisfor this map appears to be an earlier Factory Mutual drawing asyet unhealed.
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Figure9
Nationa Regger boundaries of Lymansville Campany Mill
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Name of Property

Sketch Plan

Lymansville Company Mill
184 Woonasquatucket Avenue
North Providence, RI

Filter House
and Bridge

1. Mill No. 1

2. Boiler/Engine House
3. Weave Shed

4. Mill No. 2

5. Office Building

6. Dye House

7. Factory Building

Former Tailrace

(Expires 5/31/2012)

Providence County, RI
County and State

Appraximate scale I' = 70

30



UNI TED STATES DEPARTMENT G- THE | NTERI OR
NATI ONAL PARK SERVI CE

NATI ONAL REA STER - HI STORI C PLACES
EVALUATI OV RETURN SHEET

REQUESTED ACTI ON: NOM NATI ON

PROPERTY Lymansville Conpany Mil |
NAME :

MJULTI PLE

NAME

STATE & CGONTY: RHICE | SLAND, Providence

DATE RECEl VED. 11/09/ 12 DATE CF PENDI NG LI ST: 12/ 14/ 12
DATE (F 16TH DAY: 12/ 31/ 12 DATE CF 45TH DAY: 12/ 26/ 12
DATE (F WEKLY LI ST:

REFERENCE NUMBER 12001098

REASONS FOR REVI EW

APPEAL: N DATA PRCBLEM N LANDSCAPE: N LESS THAN 50 YEARS: N
O'HER N PDI L: N PER QD N PROGRAM UNAPPROVEDT N
REQESTr: N SAWLE N SLR DRAFT: N NATI ONAL: N
GOMMENT VA VER N

ACEPT RETURN REJECT [ 7. 2(™ | M"ATE

ABSTRACT/ SUMWARY COMMENTS

Entered ia
The Nationai Regiger
dl
Higoric Places

RECOM / CR TER A

REVI EWER DI SCI PLI NE_

TELEPHONE DATE

DOOUMENTATI ON see attached coments Y/ N see attached SLR Y/ N

[f anomnation i sreturned t othe nomnating authority, the
nom nation i s no |longer under consideration by the NPS


















































































































STATE OF RHODE ISLAND AND PROVIDENCE PLANTATIONS
HISTORICAL PRESERVATION & HERITAGE COMMISSION
Old Sate House » 150 Benefit Street » Providence, R.1. 02903-1209 RECEIiVP

TEL (401)222-2678 FAX (401) 222-2968
TTY (401)222-3700 Website www.preservation.ri.gov NO/ O 9 4P

NA HEGSTLIP OF RAES

November |, 2012
Mr. J. Paul Loether, Chief
Nationa Park Service 2280, 8™ Floor
Nationa Regiger of Historic Places
1201 | (Eye) Strest, NW
Washington, DC 20005

Dear Mr. Loether:

Endosad isthe completed National Register of Historic Places nomination for the
Lymansville Company Mill a 184 Woonsaguatucket Ave in North Providence, Rhode
Idand.

Notification procedures required by law have been followed. The nomination hes
been reviewed by the Rhode I1dand Review Board and approved.

Pursuant to the Nationa Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as anended in 1980, as
Sae Historic Preservation Officer for Rhode Idand, | heréby nominate this property to the
National Regiger of Historic Flaces

Sincerdy,

Edward F. Sanderson
Sate Historic Preservation Officer

/mam
enclosure



